P.G. #87B-12 (1878/1932)
St. Phillip's Chapel Site and Cemetery

16100 Block of St. Phillip's Road, Aquasco, Md.
Priv/Unocc/Cemetery/Site

The chapel which stood on this site until 1976,

was a gable-roofed frame structure with four-bay facades,
and entrance through a vestibule at the north gable end.

Repairs in 1932 added a low apse at the south gable end,

and at the north gable end, a new entrance which enclosed
the older vestibule. This chapel burned to the ground in
1976; all that remains is the free-standing bellcote (in

which still hangs the bell cast in 1884) to the west, and
a gravevard to the east.

St. Phillip's Chapel in Aquasco was the first of two
Episcopal Chapels built for Blacks in Prince George's
County. (The second was St. Simon's, Croom.) St. Mary's
Episcopal Chapel in Woodville (now Aquasco) had been
established as a mission chapel in the mid-nineteenth
century, and Blacks were included in the congregation.
After the Civil War, however, the congregation of St. Mary's
divided along racial lines, as was the case in many churches;
St. Mary's Vestry in 1878 purchased a one-acre lot on the
west side of Woodville, on which the small frame St. Phillip's
chapel was built. It was repaired and remodeled in 1932,
but burned to the ground in 1976. A merger with the White
congregation of St. Mary's was considered but rejected, and
the St. Phillip's congregation is now worshipping in the
old St. Michael's Catholic Church building in Baden. The
site of St. Phillip's is now deserted except for the old
bell and a small graveyard. It is significant as the first
of only two Episcopal chapels built for Blacks in Prince
George's County.
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1. Name

(indicate preferred name)

St. Philip's Chapel

historic

and/or common

2. Location

street & number

16100 block of St. Philip's Road

___ not for publication

Baden
city, town Aquasco — vicinity of/ congressional district
state Maryland county P.G.
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
—_ district- ___ public - occupied ___ agriculture ____museum
___ building(s) _X_ private _X unoccupied ____ commercial ___ park
—___ structure ____ both ____ work in progress ____ educational ____ private residence
X _ site Public Acquisition Accessible ____ entertainment ____religious
___ object ____in process ___yes: restricted ____government _____ scientific
—— being considered _X yes: unrestricted ____industrial - transportation
not applicable no military X _other: Cemetery

4- owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

Vestry of St. Paul's Parish

name

street & number 13900 Baden-Westwood Road

telephone no.:

city, town Brandywine state and zip code Md. 20613
5. Location of Legal Description
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. P.G. County Courthouse liberHB #14

6. Representation in Existing =mistorical surveys

title

Prince George's County Inventory of Historic Sites

date 1974

—_federal

__state X_county

- local

depository for survey records

History Division, M-NCPPC

clty, town Riverdale

state




7. Description Survey No.P.G. 87B-12

Condition Check one Check one

- excellent ____deteriorated ____ unaltered ___ original site

—__good —__ruins ____ altered —_moved date of move
—___fair X _ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

The chapel, which stood on this site until 1976, incorp-
orated elements of the original chapel erected ca. 1878. It
was a gable-roofed frame structure with four-bay facades,
and entrance was through a vestibule at the north gable end.
The original chapel stood on brick piers, and the spaces
between the piers were later filled in with cement block. The
four windows on the east and west facades had pointed arches
and stained glass.

St. Phillips's chapel was repaired and remodeled in
1932. A low apse was added at the south gable end, and a
new entrance room was built at the north gable end, enclosing
the older vestibule.

The chapel building burned to the ground in 1976. The
free standing bellcote, west of the chapel, was not burned.
The old bell, cast in 1884 by McShane and Co., Baltimore,
still hangs in this bell-cote, but not a trace of the chapel
remains. Along the eastern edge of the church lot is a small
graveyard, still in use, with several old stones.




8. Significance Survey No.P.G. 87B-12

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

—__prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ___ landscape architecture_X_ religion

——1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic — conservation — law - science

—1500-1599 ____ agriculture - economics ——_literature — sculpture

—_1600-1699 ____ architecture —_ education —_ military —— social/

—_1700-1799 ____art —_ engineering —_ music humanitarian

_X_1800-1899 ___ commerce — exploration/settiement ___ philosophy —theater

—— 1900~ ___ communications — industry ___ politics/government ___ transportation
— invention ' _X_ other (specify)

Black History

Specific dates 1878, 1932 Y&?Beaauilaermrchi:ect

check: Applicable Criteria: _ A __ B _ C _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A _ B _C _D _E __F _G
Level of Significance: _ national __ state __ local
Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

St. Phillip's Chapel in Aquasco was the first of two
Episcopal Chapels built for Blacks in Prince George's County.
St. Mary's Episcopal Chapel had been established in Woodville
(Aquasco) in the mid-nineteenth century as a mission chapel
of the parish church, St. Paul's at Baden. There were Blacks
numbered among the congregation of St. Mary's, as there were
in other Episcopal Churches. After the Civil War, however,
the congregation of St. Mary's divided along racial lines, as
was the case also in many of the County's Methodist churches.
Under the leadership of Rev. Josiah B. Perry, Rector of St.
Paul's Parish, the Vestry purchased in 1878 a one-acre lot on
the west side of Woodville, and a small frame chapel was
erected there soon afterwards for the use of the Black
Episcopalians of the Woodville area. St. Phillip's became a
diocesan mission after the creation of the Diocese of
Washington in 1895.

St. Phillip's Chapel was repaired and remodeled in 1932
(see #7). Like its counterpart, St. Simon's at Croome (the
chapel for Blacks established by St. Thomas' at Croome; see
P.G. #86A-12) it had a sizeable and active congregation through
the middle of the twentieth century. St. Phillip's chapel
burned to the ground in 1976, after which a merger with the
White congregation of St. Mary's was considered but rejected.
Instead, the o0ld St. Michael's Catholic Church in Baden was
purchased, and the St. Phillip's congregation is now worship-
ping in that remodeled building.

The site of St. Phillips is now deserted except for the
old bell (in a modern bellcote) which stands alone at the
west edge of the church lot, and the small graveyard which
takes up the eastern section.™ The Black congregation of
St. Simon's, Croome, had merged with St. Thomas' nearly a
decade before St. Phillip's burned, leaving St. Phillip's
at that time the only remaining historic Black Episcopalian

chapel in Prince George's County.
f
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organization History Division, M-NCPPC date May 1983
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.
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CONDITION

The building is an A-roofed, frame structure with an
A-roofed porch on the gable end. The' sidewalls have four,
pointed-arch windows. On the south end is an A-roofed
apse.

On the main (north) facade, a new entrance has been
added.

An 1884 bell, cast in Baltimore, stands west of the

Church in a low, freestanding cote.
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Prince Georges - 87B-12

St.Prillips Episcoval Church

St.Phillip's Rosad

Acuasco,lD 20678 1875

Accross:sublic

St.Phillips Episcopal Chapel burned to the ground in 1975.
This 1309%yr old Jhapel was the oldest black Episcopal Church
the entire region of eastern .rince Georges Jounty. The
parishioners tried to save some timber from the old Chapel
but they rotted. The site is n.u used only for burials in

the small cemetery on the ezst side cf the property.
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SIGNIFICANCE
P
PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC __COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE EHEUGION
—1400-1499 — ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION —LAW —_SCIENCE
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE —ECONDMICS —LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 __ARCHITECTURE EEDUCATION —MILITARY _’%OC!&UHUMANITARIAN
—1700-1798 —ART —__ENGINEERING __MUSIC —THEATER
—1B00-1899 — COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT — PHILOSOPHY —__TRANSPORTATION
—1900- —COMMUNICATIONS _—INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT —OTHER {SPECIFY)
—INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES 1875 BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St. Phillip's Episcopal Chapel was the oldest black Episcopal

church in the entire areas of eastern Prince Georges County.

Blacks were not generally members of the Episcopal Church in

any numbers until after the Civil War. It is & great tragedy

that the Chapel burned in it's centennial yesr. The parishioners

ried to save some timbers from the old chapel but they rotted.

For some time they used the farmhouse directly across the road

from the site to hold religious services. That property has

now been sold to a white family named Merkham and is being used

as & riding academy. The congregation has recently bought an

old Catholic Church in the area and it is being remodeled by

the Episcopal Diocese of Washington to serve their needs. The

site on 8t. Phillips Road is still being used for burials.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EIMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
[JGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY -
[E1FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE
Jemes W. Clark,Historic Sites Surveyor

ORGANIZATION Maryland Commigssion on Afro-Americsan Sy

History & Culture

STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
20 Desn Street 269-28913
CTYORTOWN Annapolis surlslaryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST

MAGI# 1787B30672]

INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

BINAME

HISTORIC R
St. Phillip's Episcopal Church (. l«:’)
AND/OR COMMON
e
BALOCATION
STREET & NUMBER
S3t. Phillip's Road
CITY, TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
" "
Aquasco — VICINITY OF Fourth
STATE ¥ COUNTY.
Maryland Prince Georges
———
EJCLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
—DISTRICT —PUuBLIC —OCCUPIED —AGRICULTURE —MUSEUM
__BUILDINGIS) X pRIVATE Zunoccurieo __COMMERCIAL __PARK
ESTRUCTURE —BOTH —WORK IN PROGRESS —EDUCATIONAL __PRIVATE RESIDENCE
N Asie PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT ** RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT —IN PROCESS —YES: RESTRICTED —GOVERNMENT —SCIENTIFIC
—BEING CONSIDERED —YES: UNRESTRICTED —INDUSTRIAL —TRANSPORTATION
_NO —_MILITARY Xomen. Come tery
EJ OWNER OF PROPERTY

name  Vestry,St.Pillip's Episcopal Church Selepbione #: 888-1536
STREET & NUMBER y
CITY, TOWN STATE, Z1lp code
Aguasco ___ VICINITY OF MD, 20608
TEALOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION - Unable to
COURTHOUSE ) Folio #: locate
REGISTRY OF DEEDS.ETC. Prince Georges Co.Court House
STREET & NUMBER
CITY. TOWN STATE
Upper Marlboro Seryiand

TAREPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

TITLE
N/A
DATE
o~ —FEDERAL _STATE _COUNTY __LOCAL
DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS
CITY. TOWN STATE




PG ETR-|Q

DESCRIPTION
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
—_EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED __UNALTERED ZORIGINAL SITE 1875
—GOOD __RUINS _FALTERED _MOVED  DATE_ -2
_FAIR _UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

St.Phillip's Episcopal Chapel burned to the ground in 1975.
It was located *mile down St.Phillip's Rd., from that road's junction
with Md. Rte.381. The chapel was situated some 75' from the south
gide of the road and faced north. The bell of the old chapel is
still on the property housed in a cement block enclosure. The
bell was cast by Henry McShene & Co. of Beltimore in 188l.

There is a cemetery on the east side of the building that is still
in use.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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P. G. #87B-12

St. Phillip's Cemetery

Prince George's County, Md.

Susan G. Pearl

May 1983

View to South

Neg: Md. Hist. Trust, Annapolis, Md.
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P, G. 87B-12

St. Phillip's Episcopal Church,
Bellcote

Prince George's County, Md.

Susan G. Pearl

May 1983

View to South

Neg: Md. Hist. Trust, Annapolis, Md.
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St. Phillips Episcopal Church PC8#BIE
Aquasco, Prince George's County, MD
Michael Hosford

Maryland Historical Trust, Annapolis, MD
Ecirg east - Site of burned chapel
81






St. Phillips E iscopal Church PG
Aquasco, Prince George's County, MD
Michael Hosford

Maryland Historical Trust, Annapolis, MD
Facing east - Site of burned chapel
1/81
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St. Phillips Episcopal Church PGBB34 &

Aquasco, Prince George's County, MD i
Michael Hosford ,
|

Maryland Historical Trust, Annapolis, MD
Chapel bell
1/81
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